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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the r\{embers of Amishi Buildets & Deveropets pdvare Limited

Repot on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

$7e have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ,\mishi Builders & Developers private
Limited ('thecompany'), which comprise the Balance sheet as at Ivfatch 31.,2025,the Statement of proFrt
and Loss, including the statement of other comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and theStatement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and ootes to the financial statemerts, including asunmary of signifrcant accounting poricies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of ow information and according to the explanations given to us, theaforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the infornation r.quir-ed by the Companies Ac'2013 (.theAct') in the manaer so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principlesgenerally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3L,2025,its loss iocludingother comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes i" .q"iay for the year ended on that date.

Basis fot Opinion

rfe conducted ow audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing(SAs), as specified under section 143(1,0) of the Act. O,r responsibilities under those Standards are firrtherdescribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of tire Ind AS Financial Statements section of ourreport' we are independent of the company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics, issued by the Instituteof chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions of the Act aod th. Rules there under, arid we have fulfilledour other ethical responsibiJities in accordaace with these requirements and the code of Ethics. we believethat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our auditopinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditorrs Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Dit-ectors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The otherinfonnation comprises the inforrnation incloded in the Annuir.po*, but does not include the Ind ASfinancial statements and our auditor,s report thereon.

our opinion on the Ind AS financlrtl statemenb does not cover the other information and we do notexpress any forrn ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connectioa with our audit of the Ind AS finaocial statements, our responsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with thefinancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If' based on the wotk we have perforrned, we conclude that there is a rnaterial misstatement of this otherinfomration, we are required to report that fact. $7e have 16thing,o ,.po* in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management fot the Ind AS Financial Statements

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Actwithtespect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements--.that give a true and fair view of thefinancial position, financial performaoce including other compreh"q,+gAqg..rn€;cash flows and changes in. 1,,.,..,,r :..,.
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equity of the company in accotdance urith the accounting principles.generally accepted in Iadia, includingthe In'lian Accounting staodatds (Ind AS) specified"und., ,.oioo 133 of the Act read with [thecompanies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015, as ameoded]. This responsibility also includesmaintenance of adequate accoun'itg ...ori. io 
"""orda.r.. -ia a. p-isions of-the Act do, safeguardiogof the assets of the company and fot prweoting and detecting rr"ril 

^rra 
other irregularities; selection andapplication of apptoptiate accountinj potcies;Lrki.g judgrients and es.:-ates that are reasonable aad

Prudent; and- the design, itnplementation aad maiateari.. oi 
"a.qo",. 

io,oo"t financial controls, that wereoperating effectively 6or elsuul8-the accutacy aad completeo.., of ,h. accoun rg ,..orar, ,.t*ant to thepreparation and presentation of the Ind AS finaocial stitements that give a true and fair view a,,d are freeftom material misstatement, whether due to ftaud or eror.
In prepa.ng the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,sability to coatinue as a goi4g coacem, disclosing as alplicable, matters related to going coocem and usingthe going conceta basis of accouo g unless maaagemeot either intends to liquidate tle company or tocease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditot's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a wholeare ftee from matedal misstatemeug whetler due to ftaud or euor, and to issue aa auditor,s report thatincludes our opiaion' Reasonable asslraoce is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an auditconducted in accordance with SAs urill alvzays detect a material misstatement whea it exists. Misstatementscan arise ftom ftaud or etror and are coosideted mate.ial if, individually or in the aggregate, they couldteasonably be expected to influeace the econonic decisioas of users taken on the basis of these Ind ASfinancial statements.

As part of an audit io accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment aad maintai. professionalscepticism thro'rghout the audit. We also:

' Identi$ and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether dueto fraud or error, ltttgo aad perfomr audit procedures tesponsive to those risks, anj obtain auditevideace that is sufficient and appropriate to piovide a basis io, orr opinioa. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement tesulting from fraud is higher thao for oo. ,"rrltiog ftom error, as fraud mayinvolve collusioo, forgery, iatentional omissioni, misrepresentations, or the ovetride of internalcontrol.

' obtain au uoderstanditg of intemal control relevant to the aud.it in order to desrgn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the citcumsarces. under section 1a3(3)(i) of the Act, *. L aho responsiblefot expressi''g our opinion on whether the company u"r ua.q;i. internal finan"ial controls system inplace and the operati'.'g effectiveness of such.oot oir.

' Evaluate the appropriateaess of accounting policies used and the reasonableaess of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' conclude on the appropriateness of manrrment's use of the going coacero basis of accountjng and,based oo the audit evidence obtained -h"th., a material ,io.ertairrty exists related to events orcoaditions that may cast signi-ficant doubt on ttre compaoy's ability to coutinue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that t matdaluncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentioq. in o* ,rrIitor,, ,.portto ttre related disclosures in the financial statemeats oq if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiffour opinion' our coadusions are based on the audit evideace obtained up to the a"t or o* auditor,s

::[:#"**et, 
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going

' Evaluate the overall Presentation, suuctufe and content of the Ind AS financial statements, includingthe disdosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the undedying transactions aodeventsinamaflnefthatachievesfairpresentation.:

amoflg other matters, the planned scope

\ n

V7e commuaicate with those charged with governance



and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigrriFrcant deficiencies in internal
conffol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that 'we have complied with relevant
ethical tequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all reladonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Repott on Othet Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order), issued by the Cenual
Government of India in terrns of sub-section (11) of section 143 of tlr. A.t, we give in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragaphs 3 and,4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(") !7. have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

@) In our opinion, Proper books of account as required by lav have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of -hrrrg.r in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 1'33 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standlrds) Rules,
2075, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on N{arch 31.,2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Nlarch 31,2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 e) of the Acq

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internd financial controls over fmancial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating ifectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report;-

G) Th. provision of section 1,97 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company
for the year ended March 31* 2025.

(h) \)fith resPect to the other matters to be rncluded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201.4, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending Iitigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there wete any material foreseeable Iorr.*;

in. There were oo amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fuod by the Company.

iv.

4 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beiief, no funds
advanced or loaned(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been

or invested (either from borowed funds or share premium or kind
foreign entity

A

of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or



("Intermediad.es'), with the understanding, whether recorded io writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any mauner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Company !.Uki*"t"
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, secudty or the like on behalf of ih" Ulti-.t.
Benefrciaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign enury ('Funding panies,), with
th; rlnderlanding whether recorded in writing or otherqrise, that the Company sha[
whether, dfuectly or indirecdy, lend ot invest in other persons or entities identihed in any
malurer whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Benefrciaries') or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beoeficiaries;

.) Based on the audit ptocedues that have been considered reasonable and appropdate in
the &cumstances, norhing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contaio any material misstatement.

The company has not paid or declared any dividend during the year, accordingly the
provision of section 123 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

The Company has used a third party operated accounting software for maintaining its books of
account, based on examination of service organization controls report (SC)C report), we noted that the
audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, based on the examination
of such rePort, we did not come across any instance of audit tail feature being tampere<t with.
Additionally, based on examination of SOC report, the audit uail in respect of such software has been
recorded and presewed in full compliance with the requfuements of section 128(5) of the Companies
Act,2013, in tespect ofthe financialyear ended NIatch 31,2025. Further, in respect ofthe financial
yeats ended Match 31, 2024,n the absence of SOC report for'the period from April 1, 2023 to
December 31, 2023, we are unable to assess whether the audit trail has been preserved as per the
statutory requiremeflts for tecord retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG

v,

vi.

LLP

RIERED\

No.521269

ICAI Firm Regn. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date:22.04.2025
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1)

ttArtnexute At' to the Auditot's Report of even date to the members of Amishi Builders &
Developets Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements fot the year ended on March 31,
2025.

Based on the audit procedures perfotmed for the purpose of exptessing an opirrion oo the true and fair
view of the Ind AS financial statements of the company and considering the information and explanations
given to us and books of accounts and other records provided to us during the nomal course of audit, we
hereby report that -

In respect of Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Inangible Assets:
a) Since ttre Company does not have aay Ptoperty, Plant and Equiprnent and Intangible Assets, heoce

reporting uoder clause 3 (, (") (A) and (B) of the order is rrot applicable to the company.

b) Since the Company does aot have aoy Property, Plant and Equipment, reporting under clause 3 (D (b)
of the ordet is not applicable to the company.

.) Since thete is no immovable properry in the company, heflce reporting under clause 3 (i) (c) of the
order is not appJicable to the company.

d) Since the ComPanI does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (including rights of Use Assets) or
both, reportiog undet clause 3 (, (d) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

4 According to inforrnation & explanations and representations given to us by the management, no
proceedings has been initiated or 

^re 
pending against the company for holdrng any benami

proPerty under Benami Transactions (?rohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(r) Since the Company does not have any Inventory, hence reporting under clause 3 (ii)(a) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has rot been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of { 5 crore, in aggregate, at any poiots of time dudng the year,
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting
under clause 3(4F) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation given to us, during the yeat the Company has not
provided any security or guarantee or granted any loaos or advances in the nature ofloans, secuted
or unsecured to companies, firms aod limited liabi\lity partnerships or other parties covered.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (flr) (.) to (Q of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provision of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 ate applicable and accordingly the requirement to r€port on clause 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the infotmation & explanatioo given to us, Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which ate deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable.

Mainteoaoce of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities caried out by the
Company. Hence, teporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ii)

r)

v)

vi)

/t
9
t\

1ii)

,rr*rt(
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"") In respect of statutory dues,
According to the records 9f the company, the company is geneally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues induding provident fund, employees' state irrsurao.t income-tai, sales-
tax,,service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues
applicable to it.
According to the infor:nation and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
tespect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value add.d t.*
and cess were outstanding, as at Match 31,2025 for a period of more than six montls from the
date they became payable.

b) According to the recotds and the informatioo and the explanation given to us, the company does
not have any disputed dues as on NIarch 31,2025 in respect of goods and service ta-x, provident
fund, employee's state insurance, iocome tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues.

viii) Accotding to ttre information & explanation given to us, there iil/ere no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surendeted or disclosed as income during the lear
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1,961 (43 of 1961)

ix)

4 Accotding to the infotmation & explanatioo given to us, tle Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) Accotding to tle iaformation & explanation givea to us, the Compaoy has not been declared
willful defaulter by *y bank or financial institution or government authority.

.) According to the ioformation & explaoation given to us, the Company has not taken any term loan
during the year and tlere are flo outstanding terrn loans at the beginning of the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(o)G) of the Order is aot applicable.

d) Accordi.g to the infomation & explanation given to us, or an overall examination of the fmancial
statements of the Company, funds taised on short-terrn basis have, pdma facie, not been used
during the year for long-term pwposes by the Company.

E According to the informatioa & explaoation given to us, Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on accolult of or to meet tJre obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventrxres.

0 According to the information & explanation fiven to us, Company has not raised any loans on
pledge of securities held by its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates and hence reporting on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

4

a) According to the infomration & explanation givefl to us, the company has not raised money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable.

b) Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible
debentures. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(.Xb) of the order is not applicable.

(r) To the best of our knowledge and According to the information & explanarion given to us, no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Compaoy has been noticed or reported during the
year. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(.r) (r) of the order is not applicable.

' ,,

4
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*ii)

"*)

O) During the yeat, no teport under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 201 3
has been Frled by cost auditors/secretarial auditor or b;, s5 in Fonn ADT_4 as irescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Cenftal Goveiome.rt.

G) ,\ccording to the information & explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints has
been received during the yeat by company.

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the compafly is not a
Nidhi company. Hence the provision of clause 3(rii) (r) to (c) of the order is .ro, ,ppL.ble to the
company.

According to the infonnation & explanatioos given to us, all transactioos defined under Section
188 of the Act are in compliance with Section 188 and details of these rransactions are propedy
disclosed in the Finan.ial Statements. Futher, Section 177 of the Act is not applic^Ute to tfre
Compaoy.

xv) According to the information & explanations given to us, Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system under provisions ofSection 138 ofthe
Act. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 G*) (a) and (b) of the Otder is not applicable to the
company.

xr) In out opinion the Company has not eotered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persoos connected with its djrectors as referted under provisions of section 192 of the Companies
4ct,2013.

xvi)

E In oru opinircn and accotding to the information & explanation given to us, the company
is not required to be registered under section 45-L\ of the Reserves Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(*D (r) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financials or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)1b) is not applicable to
the Company.

.) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report in clause 3(xvi)(c) is not
applicable to the Company.

d) The Group has one Core Invesffnent Company as part of the Group.

*"ii) The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year of Rs.3.97 Lakhs and Rs. 3.68
Lakhs during the immediately preceding fmancial year.

xvui) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvrii) is appl-icable to the Company.

xt\) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 1.7 and. Note 21 to the financial statemenrs,
the ageing and expected dates of realiz2fi61 of Frnancial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompan,'rng the financial statements, our knorvledge of the Board of Directors
and rnanagement plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions
and considering the Company's current liabilities exceeds the current assets by { 13.63 lacs, the
Company has obtained the letter of Ftnancial support from the Holding Companr,, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company is not capable of rneetrng its
liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due withila period of orrelr.u,
from the balance sheet date.

\7e, further state that this is not an assruance as to the future viability of the Compaoy and our
rePorting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaranree
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balaqce sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

lrCHARTERED
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xx) According to the infotmation & explanations given to us, company is not required to make any
expenditure undet colporate social responsibility under provision of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(m) (a) & @) of the order is not applicable to the company.

*, This clause of the ordet is applicable to consolidated financial statements. The audit report under
refetence is on the standalone financial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of
paragraph of the ordet is not applicable to the company.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co

*
L

Firm Regn. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date:22.04.2025
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"Annexure - B" to the Auditots'Repot

Repot on the Internal Financial Conttols undet Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Actr2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 37,2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over Frnancial reporting of Amishi
Buildets & Developets Ptivate Limited.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Conttols

The Respective Board of Directors of the company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporti.g criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporti"g issued by the Instirute of Chartered lccountants of
India ('ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the otdedy and efficient conduct of
its business, inqluding adhetence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accutacy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of teliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditots' Responsibility

Out tesponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contols over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial cootrols, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note tequLe that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perforn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal firrard,e.l controls over finaocial tepoting was established and maintained and if
such conftols operated effectively in all matedal tespects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
finaocial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over Ftnancial reporting included obtarning an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal contol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over hnancial teporting.

Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal flaaacial control over fioancial teporting is a process desigOed to provide reasonable
assruance regatding the reliability of Enancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extemal purposes in accotdance with generally accepted accounting pdnciples. A company's intemal
financial control ovet financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maiatenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of ttre assets of the company; Q) provide reasooable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to perrnit preparatioo of financial statemeots in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizatioas of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assuraoce
regarding prevention or ti-ely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disp.gqfiqg of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS finaacial statements. ,'{,!:,' '.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstateme.rts due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, proiections of any evaluation of the internal f,nancial
controls over flnancial reporting to future pelods are subiect to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compJiance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In out opioion, the Company has, io all matedal respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporring were operating
effectively as at March 37,2025, based on the internal control over hnancial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Fioancial Controls Ovet Financial Repotting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of

TANTS

t.p
No.521269

ICAI Firm Regn. No: 010630N/N500036

Place: Gurugram
Dare:22.04.2025
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Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
(lt\ : Ll+5201 I IR20051,1 (110616 I

Regd. ( )fticc: \[czziltrtnc l;ltxrr, l)l,l' (iateuar 'lbrver, R []lock, DI-f; Cin,, Phasc III, (iurugxanr - 122002, I Ia.nana
Balance Sheet as ar March 31,,2025

Paniculars Note No As at
March 31,2025

I. ASSETS

Non-current assets

la) Financral assets

1ir ( )thcr ttnancial assets

(b) ( )thcr \on-currenr asscts

Current assets

Financial -\ssets

(i) (-ash ancl cash equivalents

Total Assets

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Liabilities
Current liabilities

(a) Financral liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade pa]'ables

-Toral Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises $.efer Nore l8)

-Toml Outstanding dues of creditors orher than micro enterpdses and small enterprises

(iii) Other Enancial liabilities

ft) Other current liabilities

Total Equity and Uabilities

Summan of \latenal accounung policies

0.90

(Amount in lakhs)

As at
Match 31,?-021

0.903

+

0.90 0.90

5 0.97 3.5,1

0.97 3.54

7.87 4.44

6

1

5.00

(17.73)

5.00

(13.76)

(12.73) (8.76)

8

9

12.00

1.24

0.24

0.97

0. l5

I1.00

1.24

10

11

14.60 13.20

1.87 4.M

2

'fhe accompanving notes forms an integgal parr of these financral steremenrs

Based on ()ur rcport ofeven date attached.

For and txr behalf of
ARG&Co.LLP
Chartered

iIiR\: 36)

CHARIER ED

Kunal
l'artner

For and on behalf of board oi direcrors

Amishi Builders & Developers Pvt Ltd

w
Pankai Rastogi

Dirccror

DI\ : t)892130-{\ o.: Sl ll(r() \

Ptace: Gurugram
Date:22.04.25

* *

v
E,

I)I 073.1956+

t,

Eq"ity
(a) Eqtnn share capital

Q) ( kher trquin,

Total equity

0.8r

0.15



Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
(ll\ : 1I"15201 I II{20051,1 (11 06161

l{cgd. ()fflcc: \lezzanine liltxrr, l)l.F (lateu'ar''lirwcr, It Block, l)],F (jin, I)hasc III,(iurugrarn ,122002,Ilan.ana

Statement of Prolit and Loss for the year ended March 3l,2OZS

For the year ended
l:s.Iarch31,2025

(Amount in lakhs )

Particulars Note No For the year ended
Match3l,2024

I. Income
( )ther income

II. Expenses

Ijinance costs
()ther expenses

12 0.03 0.02
Total Income

Total Expenses

0.03 0.02

13

14

1.07

2.93

0.89

2.81

4.00 3.70

IIL [.oss before tax (I-II)

IV. Tax expenses

Current year

Defered tax

V. Loss after tax for the year (III-I9

VI. Other comprehensive income

A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

ii) Income tax relating to items that vill be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total Comprehensive loss for the year

IX. Eamings/([.oss) pet equity share (face value of Rs
10 per share)

Basic (R.s)

Dilutcd fil.s)

Summan- of Ilaterial accounting policies

(3.e7) (3.68)

t5

l6

(3.ea (3.68)

(3.e7) (3.68)

(0.03)

(0.03)

(0.03)

(0.03)

2

'l'he accompanving notes forms an integral part of these financial statements

Based on our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of
ARG&Co-LLP
Chartcred .-\ccountants

@RN:01

Kunal
l)artner

i\lembership o.:521269

For and on behalfofboard ofdirectors
Amishi Builders & Developers Pvt Ltd

&

Pankai Rastogi

Director

DIN : 08921304

HAR IEREO

h L

t)t\

Place: Gurugram

D'ate:22.04.25



Amishi Buildere & Developers Private Limited
CIN : U45201I1R2005PTC106161

Regd. Office: Mezzmine Floor, DLF Gatewy Tower, R Block, DLF City, Phase III, Gurugram - 122o02,llatyata
Cath Flow Statcment for the yee ended March 31, 2025

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES

(Ioss) before Tu
Adiusmrent for :

Finuce costs

If,terest received

Operating (oss) before working capital chmgee

(3.e7) (3.68)

0.891.07

Moremcnt in Working cepitd:
Incrme/pecrrue) in Other Cumt Liabilities

Net ceeh f,ow (ueed in) Operating Activitiee (A)

B) CASH FLOW FROM ILTVESTTNG ACTTVTTTES

Interest income

Net cash 0ow &om /(used in) Investing activities (B)

c) cAsH FLOW FROM FTNANCTNG ACTTVTTTES

Proceeds frcm short-tem borrou,iags

Interest paid(including TDS)

Net carh flow from / (ueed in) Finmcing activitics (C)

Net (decreaee) in Cash ud Cash Equivalente (A+B+C)

Cash od cash equivaleots at the beginning of the yar
Cash md cash equivalents at the md of tlte yar
Net decrere in C.sh md C.8h Equivelents

Other discloruec rcquired by Ind-AS 7:

in Liabilities from .ctivities

2024

Crh Flou
lnterest exlEses (excluding intetest accrued but aot due)

Interest Paid

Bduce ae on 31 March2025

Balmcc ee on I
Cash Flow
Ioterest expmses (excludiag iotaest rccffd but not due)

Interest Paid

Bdmce rs on 3l Mxcb20?A

(B) Changes in Uabilities arising from Investing activities

0.21 (0.31)

(3.12)(2.6e)

0.03

0.03

1.00 1.00

3.15

3.54

3.54

o.97

_____________Jn_ 0.39

1.00

1.07

(0.e1)

t2.97

7.+1

+.00

0.89

(0.1e)

11.81

Other thm those disclosed in Cash flow tlere is no aon-cxh movment in

Smary of Materid accomting policies (refer note no. 2)

The accompmyiog dotes foms m integml part of these fmmcial statemsts

Based on ou audit report of even date attached

For md on behalfof
ARG&Co.LLP
Chartered Accomtaats

(FRN:

Kmal

521269

Place: Gurugrm

actrvrbes

For and on behalfofboatd ofdircctors
Amishi Builders & Develope rs Frt Ltd

Pmkal Restogi
Director

DIN: 08921304

CH ARTERED

Datet22.M.25

DIN:

G

(Amount in lakhs )

For the year ended
2024

Pa*iculue

a8

(0 03) (0.02)

(2.e3) (2.8r)

(o.el) (o +e)

0.09 3.51

(2.57\ 0.39

Noi<urrent
Bomwings

Curent BorowingsPardcdnrr

Noo-surrent
BonowingrParticulu



Amishi Builders & Developers Privare Limited
(ll\ : 1 152(ll ttR2lI15l' ttll061 6l

Rcgrl.()tficc:\lczzlnincljlxrr,l)l.l'(imcs'ar''lirtcr,Rlllock,I)l.ti(lin,l)haselll,(iurugrim l22l)o2,ilanena
Statemenr ofChanges in Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2025

A Equiry share capital*

in lakhs

shue 5.00

share 5.00

B Other

Balance at the beginning ofthe reporting year I April 2024 I,146.00 (1,15e.76) (1:l.76)
Total comprehensirc income of the year (3.e'0 (3.eD
Balance as at 3l March 2025 I,146.00 (1,163.73) (17.73)

in lakhs

1,1{6.00 (1,156.08) o0.08)
Total comprehensile income ofthe 1,er (3.68) (3.68)

Balance as at 3l March 202{ I,146.00 (r,rs9.75) (13.?6)

*Rcfer note No.5
rtompulmrily Conrertible Debentures

issue bmis. Each CCDs is compulsotily conrcrtible, at the optioo of CCD Holdes, into one nmber of Equity Shues in one or more trmches r.ithio a period of ten vear frcm the dare of
allotmmt of the CCDs but not later thm the expir of tm vers.

HRetained eamings
Represents sulplus in statemmt of Profit md loss

The accompmying notes foms m integral prt of these fmmcia.l statmmts

Based on our report ofeveo datc attachcd.

For md on behalf of
ARG&Co.LLP
(lhartered

(r.'RN

Kunal

Putocr

For md on behalfofboard of
Amishi Builders & Developers

,^rW
521269

f)irector
DIN: 08921304

h-x

Director

01349564

Place: Gurugram
Date:22.04.21

CHARTERED

Prni<rohrs B.hDcc rt llrApril2021 Ckrqgc h Eqray3h.lc
Qipitrl{ulrytcpr

Bdancc at 3l Mrrch
?,.25

5.(x)

Pertictlan Brhrce rt l*Aptil D:13
ClEogG b Eq6ysh{r
Cryiulduergdr ycrr

Behoce rt 3l Merch
NU

5.(X)

Icccnrte gnd qrplue

Pmicuhr
Equity cooporcat of

Coopuborily Coqrcrdhh
Dcbcunsr* Gqtdc*rrc B.t incdc.rni4St*i

Totel cquity

Prrtic'ulerg
Equityconrpontrt d

Coopuhody CorYtrtiblc
Dcbc*urc*

Bcrcrvce ud anplue
Totel equity

C4irel tcrcrvt Rarnrdcadngr*r
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Amishi Builders & Developerc Private Limited
CIN: U45201HR2005PT C106161

Mezannine Floot, DLF Gateway Towet, R Bloct(, DLF City Phase tII, Gurugram, Haryan a, - 1i12002

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3l-Mrarch2025

Corporate information

Amishi Builders & Developers Pdvate Limited ('the Company) is engaged pdmarilyin the business of real estate
development. The operations of the Companv span all aspects of real estate development, from the identification
and acquisition of land, to planning, execudon, construction and marketing of projects. The registered office is
siruated at\Iezzuine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block" DLF Cin', Phase III, Gurgaon Haryaia.122002

The standalone financial statements for the -vear ended 31 NIarch 2025 rvere authorised and approved by the Board
of Directors on for issue on 22"d Apnl2025.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone fi.nancial statements ('financial statements) of the Company have been prepared in accordance q/ith
the Indian Accounting Standards (-rereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS) as notified by l\tinistn of Corporate Affairs
(NICA) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the standalone financial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting
principles generallv accepted in India. Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis excePt for certain financial assets, financial liabilities, derivative financial instnments and share based

Pavments which are measured at fait values as explained in relevant accounting policies. The changes in accounting
policies are explained in note 2(aa).

The srandalone financial statements are presented rn Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh, excepr
rvhen otherw{se indicated.

2.2 Summan- of material accounting policies

a) Current and non-cument classification

The Companl Presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curent/ non-currenr classiFrcation. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

> Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operaung ct'cle.

> Held primarilv for the purpose of trading.

> Expected to be realised within rrvelr.e months after the reporting period, or
> Cash or cash equi'i'alent unless restricted ftom being exchanged or used to settle a liabilin for at least rwelve

months after the reporting period.

-\ll other assets are classified as non-current.

-\ liabihn'is current rvhen:

> It is expected to be setded in normal operating cvcie.

> It is held primarill for the purpose of trading.

> It is due ro be sertled within rw-elve months after the reporting penod. or
> -I'here 

is no uncondidonal right to defer the setdement of the liabrhn' for at least nvelre monrhs after the

*

reporting period
&

*



Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
CIN : U45201H R2005 PT Cl061l6t

Mezannine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City Phase III, Gurugmm, Flaryana - 12ZOO1

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarch2025
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabiliues are classihed as non-currenr assers and liabilities.

The operating cvcle is the time betw'een the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equiralents.

b) Propert-v, plant and equipment

Rec:ognitio n and initia/ measarement

Propertl', plant and equipment at their iniual recognition are srared ar their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind
AS, the Companr had elected to measure all of its propern-, plant and equipment at the previous G,L{P carr\ing
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase pnce, borowing cost, if capitalizanon criteria are met and directli'
attnbutable cost of b.i"gr"g the asset to its rvorking condition for the tntended use. Anv trade discount and rebates
are deducted rn arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carning amount or
recoppised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onlv rvhen it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item u'ilI florv to the Compant-. \\hen srgnificant parts of plant and equipment are requled to be replaced at
inten'als, the Compant depreciates them separately based on they specific usefi.rl liyes. Likeu'ise, whel a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carning amounr of the plant and equipmenr as a replacement
if the recognition cdteria are satisFted. -\ll other repair and mainrenance costs are tecognised in statement of proFrt
and loss as incurred. The Companv idenufies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separatelr',
if the component/ part har.e a cost u,'hich is significant to the total cost of the asser and has useful life that is materiallv
ditTerent from that of the remaining asset.

Subxtlaent measurcment (depretiation and useJal liaet)
Properfi', plant and equipment are subsequendv measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, i[ anv. Depreciation on properh', plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets as Follorvs:

Asset category* Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act,2013
(in vears

Estimated useful
life

(in years)

)
Buildings
Plant and machinerl'
Computers and data processing units

- Sen-ers and nenvorks
- Desktops, laptops and other der.ices

Fumirure and fixtures
Office equipment
\rehicles

20-60
l0-r5

6

J
5-10

5

8-10

60

l5

6

J
10

)
8-10

'fhe Companr'. based on technical assessment made bt technical experr and managemenr esrimare, depreciates
certain items of building, furniture and fixftrres and plant and ecluipmenr over esGat.d useftrl lir-es rvhich are
differenr trom rhc Lrsetirl life prescribcd in Schedule II ro rl.re Ctxnpanics -\cr.2013.'Ihe management belier-es that
tl-rese estinrated useful lives are realisdc and retlecr tatr approsimation oi rhe period over t-hich rhe assets are like6-
to bc used.

CHARIERE

*



Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201H R2005PT C106161

Mezannine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City Phase III, Gurugam, Flaryan a - 122002
Notes to Sandalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarc}.2025

xln case of assets pertarning to Golf and Club operations, the Company based on technical evaluation and
management estimate considem the useful life of the assets as below:

Asset category Useful life
(in years)

Buildrngs
Plant and machinen'
Fumin-rre and f,xtures

20

10

5

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are rer.iew'ed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted prospectivelv, if appropnate.

De-recugnition

An item of propern', plant and equipment and any significant part rrunall,v recognised is de-recogrused upon drsposal
or rvhen no furure economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Anv gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference betrveen the net disposal proceeds and the carn'ing amounr of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss rvhen the asset is de-recognised.

t) Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development replesents expenditure incurred in respect of
capital proiects /intangible assets under development and are carried at cost less accumr lated impairment loss, if
anY. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and other
direct expendirure.

b) Inventories

a

Land and plots other than area transferred to constructed properties at the corrunencement of construction are
t'alued at los'er oi cost/as re-valued on conversion to stock and net realisable value. Cost rncludes land
(includrng development nghts and land under agreement to purchase) acquisition cost, borrow"ing cost iF
rnventorisation critena are met, esttmated intemal development costs and external develnpment charges and
other directlv attributable cosrs.

Ccrnstructi<rn v'ork-in-progress of constructed properties orher than Special Economic Zooe (SF,Z) proiects
includes the cost of land (including development nghts and land under agreements to purchase), internal
derelopment costs, extemal development charges, consrnrction costs, or.erheads, borrorving cost if
tnventorisation criteria are met. development/ construction materials. and is valued at lo\i,er o[ cost/esdmated
cost and net realisable value.

Srocks tor nrainrenance tacilities (includrng s

is lorrer

o In case oi SEZ proiects, construction rvork-in-progress of constnrcted properties include internai development
costs, external development charges, constrLrction costs, overheads. borroting cost if inventorisauon criteria are
met. der-elopment/construction materials and is vahred at los'er oicostTlestimated cost and net realisable r-alue.

l)evelopment righrs represent amolint paid r.rnder i4yeemenr t() purchase land/derelopment rights and borrosrng
cost lucLrrred br" dre Cornpatx' to ac<1uire irrevocable and exclusir-e licenses/der-elopment rights in dre idenrit-red land
and constructed properties, the ac<luisition oirvhich is either completed or is ar an adr-anced stage.'I-irese are 

'aluedat lot.er of c<-rst and net realisable r-alue.

r (lonstruction/detel<)Pment material is ralued at los'er oi cosr and net realisable r.alue. C6st comprises .I
purcl-rase price and other costs incurred rn bringrng the inr-entories to rheir presenr location and condition.

a

CHARIERE
(-osr is dctennined on s'eighted ar-erage basis.

*

i are valLred 21t c()sr or net realisable r-ahre, t'l'riclrever

a

*



Amishi Builderc & Developers Private Limited
CIN : U45201HR2005PT Cl06l6l

Mezannine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Block, DLF City Phase III, Gurugram, Haryana - l22OO2

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary' course of business less estimated cosrs of completion
and estimated costs necessan- to make the sale.

c) Revenue from contract or services with customer and other streams of revenue

Revenue from contracts rxrrth customers is recognised when control of the goods or sen'ices are tansferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to rvhich the Companv expects to be entided in exchange for
those goods or sen'ices. The Companl' has generallt'concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangemenrs
because it q.pically controls the goods and senices before transfernng them to the customers.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to relrenue from contracts
$.1th customers are provided in note 2.2(bb).

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideradon received/receivable, taking into account contracrually
deFrned terms of pavment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and is net of rebates
and discounts. The Companv assesses its revenue arrangements against specihc criteria to determine if it is acting as

pnncipal or agent. The Companr has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement of ProFr.t and Loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Companv and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliablv.

The Companv has applied Eve step model as per Ind AS 115 T.evenue from contracts with customers' to recognise
revenue in the standalone financial statements. The Companv satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if one of the follo"ving criteria is mer:

a; fhe customer simultaneouslv receives and consumes the benet-rts pror-ided bv the Compant-'s pertormance as the
Companv performs; or
b) The Companl"s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced: or
c) The Compant''s performance does not create an asset u'ith an altemative use to the Company and rhe entifi' has

an entbrceable nght to pavment for periormance complered to date.

For performance obligations rvhere anv of the abor-e conditions are not met, rel'enue is recognised at the potnt in
time at s'hich the pertbrmance obligarion is satisFred.

Revenue is recogrused either at point oi time or orer a penod of ume based on various conditions as included in the
contracts $.ith customers.

Point of Time:

Rere n u e,[rv m ru / -es la te proj utt
Rerenue is recognised at the Point in T'ime t'.r.t. sale of real esrare units, including land, plots, apartments,
commercial units, develoPment rights including development agreements as and rvhen the control passes on to the
customer

Inmmental nst of obtaining L:lntraL't

The iucremental cost oi obtaining a contract s.itir a customer is recognised as an asset if Companr e\pects t.r reco\-er
those costs subfect to other conditions of rhe standard are met. These costs are
loss ur ;rccordance t-ith the ranster oI thc p

Over a period of time:

tomer,

C HARIE RE

Rcr-enne is recrrgnised r-,r-er perir.,cl oI rinre oi revenrres

charged to statement of proFrt and



Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201HR2005PTC106161

Mezannine Floor, DLF Gateway Tower, R Bloclq DLF City Phase tII, Gurugtam, Haryana - 122002
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarch2025

Re t',, tt tt t. I t 0 n Ltt - de t'e /op me t / p rEeil.i

Co-development proiects rvhere the Compant' is acting as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance i',rth the
terms of the co-develoPer agreements. Under such contracts. assets created does not hot. .r, alternative use tbr the
Companr- and the Companv has an entbrceable nght to pavmenr. T'he estimated proiect cosr includes consrructlon
cost, der-elopment and construction material, intemal development cost, e\ternal development charges, bc.rr.rorving
cost and ovedreads ofsuch project.

The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodicalll' and effect of an1. changes in such estimates is
recognized in the period such changes are determined. However, v'hen the total project cost is esdmated to exceed
total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized rmmediate\'.

Co ns tractio n a n d.fi I -ou t pruje it

Constmction and fit-out proiects where the Companl is acting as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance
with the terms of the construction agreements. Under such contracts, assets created does not have an alternative use
and the Company has an enforceable right to pa)'ment. The estimated project cost includes construcdon cost,
development and construction material and overheads of such project.

The Compan)'uses cost-based input method for measuring progress for perforrnance obligauon satisfied over time.
Under this method, the Companl'recognises revenue in proportion to the actual project cost incurred as against the
total estimated proiect cost. The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodically and are
considered as change in estimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in estimates is recognised prospectively
in the period in which such changes ate determined. However, when the total project cost is estimated to exceed
total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediatell'.

As the outcome of the contracts cannot be'measured reliably during the early stages of the proiect, contract revenue
is recognised onlv to the extent of costs incurred in the statement of proFrt and loss.

Rtrcnae.fmn golf ilune operaliont

Income from golF course operations. capitation, sponsorship etc. is Fxed and recognised as per the management
agreement with the parties, as and'nvhen Companv satisFtes performance obligation bv delivenng the promised goods
or sen'ices as per contacrual agreed terms.

Rental and lVlaintenanr.v inr.vme

Revenue in respect oirental and maintenance sen-ices is recogmsed on an accrual basis. in accordance u,ith the terms
of the respective contract as and u.hen the Companv satishes performance obl-igations bv delir.ering the sen-ices as

per contractLral agreed teffns.

O ther otrt era ti ng i n t vru e

Income from forfeirure o[properties and interest from banks and customers under agreements to sell is accounted
for on an accrual basis except in cases r,,'here uldmate collection is consiclered ctoubtful.

CHARTER ED



Amishi Builders & Developers Private Limited
CIN: U45201HR2005PT C106161

Mezannine Floor, DLF Gateway Towet, R Block, DLF City Phase III, Gurugam, Ffaryana - 122002

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeat ended 3lMarch2025
i. Volume rebates and eady payment rebates

The Companv provides move in rebates/ earlv par-ment rebates/ dorvn patment rebates to the customers. Rebates
are offset against amounts pavable bv the customer and revenue to be recognised. To estimate tl-re r-ariable
consideration for the expected firrure rebates, the Companv estimates the expected value oF rebates that are likelr. to
be incurred in furure and recognises the revenue net of rebates and recognises the refund liabilitl for expecte<l future
rebates.

ii. Contract balances

Contratt arets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or sen'ices transferred to the customer. If the

Company performs by transfemng goods or senrices to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before

Payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideradon that is conditional.

Trade reniilablet

A receivable represents the Companv's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only' the passage

of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section 2.2(u) Financial instmments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contrait liabi/ities

-\ contract liabilin' is the obligation to transfer goods or sen'ices to a customer for u'hich the Companr, has receired
consideration (or an amount o[ consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pavs consideralion betbre
the Compant' transfers goods or sen'ices to the customer, a contract liabiliq is recc-,gnised w'hen the palnrent is rnade

or the pavment is due (s,hichever is earl-ier). Contract liabiliues are recognised as revenue rvhen the Companl
performs under the contract

d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direcdt' attributable to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asser that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get readv for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost o[ the
asset. All other borrow'ing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Companv incurs in connection '*,ith the borrowing of funds. Borrouring cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

e) Cost ofrevenue

Coil of'rea/ e$ate proj€ct

Cost oi constructed properues other than SF'-2, proiects, inciudes cosr of land (including cost oI developrnent
rrghts/land under agreements to purchase). estimared intenral derelopment costs, esternal development chargcs.
b<trrrt"ving costs, or-erheads. construction costs and development/constmction materials. t'hich is charged to the
statement oIproht and loss based on the rer-enue recolryuzed as esplained in accoundng policv ior rer-enue tiom real
estate projects abore, in consonance s-ith the concept o[ nratching costs and revenue. Final adjustrnent is made on
completion oI the specific project.

Cost o;f SEZ pmjects

(-osr oI consructed properties includes
,rr cllrrirds. l-r.rr.r, irrg tus[. cotrsLtrrctlulr
sratemer)t oiprofir irnd loss based on the

clevekrpment c()sts, extemirl devckrpn]er]t charges,
ictttT'cort:ttucLiutr rtratctial., .tlti,-1, i" elrarqctl t,r tlrc

*
:-

*
explaured in accountinu policv frrr rerenrie tiorn real
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estate SEZ proiects above, in consonance with the concept of matching cosrs and revenue. Final adjusrment is made
on completion of the specific project.

Coil oJ land and plott

Cost of land and plots includes land (includrng development rights), acquisirion cost, esrimared internal development
costs and extemal detelopment charges, rvhich is charged to the statement of proFrt and loss based on the percentag.
of land/plotted area in respect of rvhich revenue is recogrused as explained in accounting policv for revenue from
'Sale o[ land and plots', in consonance with the concept of matching cost and revenue. Final adiustment is made on
completion of the speciFrc project.

(.ot t of' delelopmen| iphtt

Cost of development rights includes proportionate development rights cost, borrowing cosrs and other related cosr,
which is charged to statement of profit and loss as explained in accounting polic)' for revenue, in consonance ',vrth
the concept o[ matching cost and revenue.

I Taxes

Current income tax

Tax expense recognized in statement of proEt and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directh'in equitr-.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recor-ered from or pard to the
taxation authorities. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect o[ taxable income f<rr the vear and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recogrused outside
statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of proFrt and loss (eirher in other comprehensive
income or tn equrn). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction either rn OCI or
direcdv rn equin. \Ianagement periodicallv evaluates positions taken in the tax retums s'ith respect to siruations in
rvhich applicable tax regulations are subiecr to interpretadon and establ-ishes provisions rvhere appropriare.

In the siruadons rvhere one or more units,/undertakrng rn the Companv are enutled ro. a rax holidav under rhe
Income-tax Act, 196 1, no de[erred tax (asset or liabiLin'; is recogruzed in respect o[temporan'differences u'hich
reverse durtng the tax holidat' penod, ro rhe extent the concerned entin''s gross total rncome is subject to the
deduction dunng the tax holidar-penod. Dettrred tax in respect of temporan' dif-ferences s'hich reterse after the tax
hohdav penod is recognized in the t'ear in rvhich the temporaq'drfferences originate. Horvever, the Compau'restncrs
recognition of deterred tax assets to the extent rt is probable that sutficient fr-rture taxable income rvili be ar-ailable
agarnst rvhich such det-erred tax assets can be realized. For recogrution o[ deferred raxes, rhe temporan' differences
rvhich ongrnate Frst are considered to rer-erse first

Deterred tax

Deferred tax ts provtded r"rsing the liabrlin' method on temporan- di[terences benveen the tas bases of assers and
liabilities and their carn'ing amounts for t-rnancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabihues are recognised for all taxable temporan. ditferences, except:

o In respect of raxable temporan' difterences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in ioint renrures, s'hen the trming oI the re'i'ersal of the temporan' differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temPoran' di[ferences t'ill not re\-erse in rlre foreseeable tunrre.

De te'rred ta\ asscts are recoenisecl tirr all dittlrences. the carn' tirrrsarcl <,t unuscr-l tar credirs
rnrl arrl rrrrrrsetl frr lrrises T),,ferr,,rl t,rx

*
rL.l

*

to the e\renr rl-rer ir is prr,lvhle rl-rar rar..rlrlr prrrfir rr.ill
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be available against which the deductible temporarv differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and teduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufEcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilsed. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporung date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and ltabiliues are measured at the tax rates that are expected to applr- in the t'ear u.,hen the asset
is realised or the liabilin'is setded, based on tas rates (and tax larvs) that have been enacted or substantivelv enacred
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of proFrt and loss is recognised outside starement of
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equitr). Deferred tax irems are recognised in correlation
to the underlr-ing transaction either in OCI or direcdv rn equin.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliues are offset if a legallv enforceable nght exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entin' and the same taxation authorifi.

Sales tax / value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax / r'alue added taxes/Goods and sen'ices tax paid,
except:
> \Ihen the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable ftom the taxation authoriry, in u,hich

case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as

applicable

> \\hen teceivables and pavables are stated with the amounr of tax included

The net amount of tax recor.erable [rom, or pavable to, the taxation authorirr is included as part of receivables or
payzbles in the balance sheet.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

.\t each reporting dare, the Companv assesses rvhether there is anv indication based on internal/external factors, thar
an asset mat' be tmpaired. IF anr such indication exists, the Companv estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's cir cash-generating unit's (CGL) fair ralue less cr-,sts of
drsposal and its value in use. Recorerable amount is determrned for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflos's that are largelr independent of those from other assets or groups oi assets. \\hen the carn'ing
amount of an asset <-rr CGU exceeds its recorerable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is rvrinen dorvn ro
its recoverable amottnt and the impairment loss. including impairment on inventories, is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

In assessing r-alue in use, the estimated funrre cash t'lou's are discounted to their present value using a pre-ta\ discount
rate that reflects current market assessments o[ the time ralue of monel and the risks specihc t() the asset. In
determining iairralue less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are taken into accounr. IIno strch transacti()ns
can be identit-red, an apPr()Pri?rtc valtatiou n'rodel is used. T'hese calcr-rlations are corrol>orated br val,r:rtion mr-rltiplcs,
quoted share prices ti-rr pubhclr tradecl companies or other available Fair r-al-re indicarors.

The Cornpant bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and f<rrecasr calcurladon. 
-fhese budgets and

tbrecast calculations generalh' c()r'er a period o[ hte lears. For longer periods, a long rerln sro\\'rh rate is calculated
and applied t() proiect future casl'r florvs afrer the hflh rear.

lt-, at the reporring clare there is an indication rhat a

recoverable amolrnt is reassessed and the ass

rccr,gnizccl are uccorrlinqh' rcr-crsccl in

previoush' assessed unpatr:rnr-nt krss no longer esists. the
ted ar tlre rccr,r-erablc am()Lrr1t. In.rpirirrr-rent losses previorrslr'

L

CHARTEREh) Cash and cash equivalents
*

and loss
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Cash and cash equir.alents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and shorr-rerm deposits with an
origrnal marLrrih' o[ three months or less, rvhich are subf ect to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purPose of the statement o[cash florvs, cash and cash equiralents consist o[unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as deltned above, net of outstanding bank or-erdrafts as ther are considered an inregral part of the
Companr''s cash management.

i) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions ate recognized only when there is a present obligation (egal or constructive), as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setde the obligation
and when a reliable estimate of rhe amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. Provisions are discounted
to thert Present values, where the trme value of monev is material, using a crurent pre-tax rate that reflects, when
apptopriate, the risks specific to the liabiliq'. Shen discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cosr.

\\hen the Companv erpects some or all of a pror-ision to be reimbursed. the reimbursement is recognised as a

sePafate asset, but onlv v,-hen the reimbursement is virtuallv certain. The expense relating to a pror-ision is presented
in the statement of proFrt and loss net of anl reimbursement.

Onetous contracts

If the Companv has a contract that is onerous, the present obligauon under the contract is recognised and measured
as a provision. Hos'ever, before a separate provision for an onerous conract is established, the Companv recognises
anr impairmenr loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under rvhich the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Companr- cannot avoid
because it has the contract) of meeting the obLigations under the contract esceed the economic benefits expected to
be receir-ed under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
rvhich is the lorr er oF the cost of fulFrlling it and anv compensarion or penaldes arising from failure ro tulfil it.

These estimates are rer-ie'"r'ed ar each reporting date and adjusred ro ret'lect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilin- is disclosed [or:

Possible obligations ivhich will be conFtrmed onlv br future events not rvholh's,ithin rhe control of the Companv
of
Present obligations arisrng from past events s,here it is not probable that an outt'lorv of resources udl be required
to settle the obhgation or a reliable estimate of the amount oi the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclc,sed e\cept s-hen realisatir.,n oiincome is rirnralh'certain, related
assef is drsclosed.

D Leases

The Companl- assesses at contract inception u'hether a contract is, or conrains, a lease. fhat is, if the contract
conrels the right to control tire use o[ an identiFred asset for a period of rime in exchange tbr consideration.

Companv as a lessee

'['l.re (-ompirnl applies a sir-rslc

a

a

an.l lcasgs , rf 1,,u -r altre asscts. 'l'hc
t approach tirr all leases. e\cepr tirr short-rerm le-ases

se fiabilities to makc leirse pavmcnrs ancl right-r,t--usc

)t

asscts rcprcscntinq the riqht to use rhc

*
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Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the undedying
asset is available for use). Rrght-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impa6ient
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost oi right-of-u.. urr.t, includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incured, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less anv lease incentit'es received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as follows:

Asset l,ease term
Land
Buildings
Assets taken on lease for golf operations

28-36 years
3-16 years

6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Companv at the end of the lease teffn or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated usrng the estimated useful life of the asset.
The nght-ot-use assets are also subiect to impairment. Refer to the accounung policies in nore 2.2(p) on impairment
of n<-rn-financial assets.

lease liabilities
At the corunencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease pavments to be rnade over the lease term. The lease pavments include Fr-xed payments (including in-substance
fxed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and pavments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Companv exerc'ising the oprion to terminate. \'ariable lease parments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in vhich the erient or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease pa,'ments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rare at the lease
commencement dare because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readih. determinable. After the
cotnrnencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease patimenm made. In addition, the cam'ing amourt of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modiFrcation,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease pal'ments (e.g., changes to future pat'ments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease pavments) or a change in the assessment of ,r, oprion to purchase
the undedf ing asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Companr applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that hare
a lease term of l2 monrhs or less tiom the colrunencement date ancl do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the lease of lorv-value assets recogrution exemption to leases ot assets that are c6nsidered to be lorv value.
Lease par-ments on short-term leases and leases of lorv r.alue assets are recognised as espense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in r','hich the Companv does not transfer substantiallv all the risks and reu,'ards of orvners hip of an asset are
classiFred as operating leases. Rental income from lease is rccognised on a straight-line basis or-er the temr
oI the relevirr.rr leasc. Inirial direcr cosrs and arransing r1n operating lcase are added to tl-re
crrn-ing arrl()unt oI rhc leascd asset and term ()n thr samc basis irs rental incornc. (,ontinccnt
renrs irc recognisetl ls reventre in the
statcrncnt r>t ;rrottt tnd k'lss on accrtritl basts * *

earnc'd. Irit-,rr-rr rcntirl rncrrn'rc is rec,rgrrised in tl-rc
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l.eases are classifted as hnance leases rvhen substandallr-all of the risks and rervards o[orvnership transfer from the
Companl to the lessee. -\mounts due from lessees under Frnance leases ate recorded as receivable-s at the Companv's

net lnvestment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting penods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of rerum on the net investment outstanding in respect of the leasi.-

k) Financialinstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a fi.nancial asset of one entih' and a fiiancial liabiliq' or equin
instrument of another entitr'.

1) Financial Assets

I nitial recognition and meaturem enl

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequentlv measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCD, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recogrution depends on the Frnancial asset's contracrual cash florv
characteristics and the Compan),'s business model for managrng them. \\'ith the exception of trade receir.ables that
do not contain a signiFrcant hnancing component or for rvhich the Companr has applied the practical expedient, the
Cornpanr initiallv measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a signiFrcant financing
comPonent or ior u'hich the Companr has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under Ind AS 115 'Revenue ftom contracts rvith cusromers'.. Refer to the accounting policies in section
2.2 (b) ?.evenue from contract rvith customer

In order tor a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cosr or fair ralue through OCI, it needs to
grve rise to cash florvs that are 'solelr-pavments of principal and interesr (SPPD'on rhe principal amount ourstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Companr''s business model for managrng financial assets ret'ers to ho.,r,it manages its trnancial assets in order to
generate cash flovu's. The business model determines rvhether cash t'lorvs s,'ill result [rom collecting contracnral cash
tlou's, selling rhe Frnancial assers, or both.

S u bseq ue n t rt eavrem e n I

i, Financial assets carried at amortised cost -a financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model rvhose obyectire is to hold assers for collecting contracrual cash
florvs; and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on speciFred dates to cash flos's that are solelv pavments ()f
principal and inrerest (SPPI) on rhe principal amounr ourstanding.

-\irer initial measurement, such hnancial assets are subsequentll measured at amordsed cost using the effective
interest rare @IR) method.

ii. Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Invesrments in equin-
instruments crf sub.iaaries, joint venrures and associates are acc()unted tbr at cost in accordance with Ind .\S
27'Separate Financial Starements'.

iii. lnvestments in other equitv ins ts in ccltrin' instrtrrlcnts s'hiclr nre lreld tirr tradrns
are classrtlecl xs at tair r-:rh-re through ,]. I r,r rlll orher cquin' instrtrmcr.rts. thc (.ornpanr'
Initkcs alt tr-rcr',,cirble ch,ricc r-rpon tni

F
*

instrurnenr-br'-instrtrment basis, tc) classih' th(-
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same either as at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD or fakvalue through profit or loss
(FVTPL). ,\mounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to statement
of profit and loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equiq. Dividend on
such investrnents are recogaised in statement of profit and loss unless the dividend cliarly represents a
recoverv of part of the cost of the investment.

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investments in murual funds are measured at fair value through proht or
loss (FVTPL).

Fair value changes on instruments measured at FVTPL is iecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the
Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes on instruments measured ar FVOCI
are recogaised in OCI. Amounts recogoised in OCI are not subsequendy reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

D e -recogni tio n o_f f na n cial ar e tt'

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
pnmarilv derecognised (i.e. removed from the Companv's standalone balance sheet) when:
. The nghts to recei.r'e cash florvs from the asset halre expired, or
' The Companl'has transferred its nghts to receive cash florvs from the asset or has assumed an obligation

to pa\- the received cash flows in full u'ithout material delar to a third parq' under a 'pass-thiough'
arrangemenr; and either (a) the Companr- has rransferred substantiallv all the risks and rervards o[ rhe asset.
or ft) the Companv has neither trans[erred nor retained substantially all the risks and rervards of rhe asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lorver of the
original carrf ing amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Companr could be required
to rePal'.

I npai tru e n t of _fi n a ndal ax ett

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Companr applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recogruuon of imparrment loss for hnancial assets.

ECL is the rveighted-average of difference berrveen all contractual cash flou.s that are due to the Companv rn
accordance uith the contract and all the cash florvs that the Companv expects ro receir-e, discounted at the ongrnal
effective interest rate, 'uvith the respective risks of deiault occurring as the rveights. \\hen estimaring the cash florr,s,
the Companr is required to consider -
o All con[acrual terms of the flnancial assets (including prepavmenr and extension) o\-er rhe expected life of the

assets.

o Cash florvs from the sale of collateral held or other credir enhancements that are integtal to rhe conrractual
tefms.

(i) Trade rcLeirublei

In respect of trade receir-ables. the Companl applies the simphfied apprr-rach o[ Ind .\S 109 'liinancial InsrrLlmenrs'.
$-hic[r requrres measurement of loss allotance at an afilourlr ecitral to litetime expected credit 16sses. Lifctrme
espected credit losses are the expected credit losses rhat resulr tiom all possible delaulr evenrs or-er rhe expected life
of a Frnancial insrmmenr.

( ii) O ther.fi na n tial aste tt
In respect of its other financial assets. the Companv assesses i[the credit risk on those Frnancial assets has increased
significandy since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not
Companr- measures the loss allorvance at an
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses

\\hen tnakinq this assessmcnt. rhe Companr

increased significandv since initial recognition. the
12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount

risk of a detault occurring or-er the e\pecrerl iiti
oI the Fr.nancial asset. To make that asses

fo

ares thc risk oizr detaLrlt occurring,n rhe lrr.rancial
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asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk o[ a default occurring on the financial asser as at the dare of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort,
that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Companv assumes that the credit
risk on a Ftnancial asset has not increased signiEcantly since initial recognition if the Frnancial asset is determined to
have lorv credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-derivative fi nancial liabilities

I nitial recognitio n a n d m eas u rcm e n t

Financial liabilities are classified, at inirial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through proFrt or loss, loans
and borrowings and pavables, net of directll' attnbutable tansaction costs.

The Companr"s financial liabilities include uade and other pavables, securiry deposits, loans and borrowings and
other Enancial liabilities including bank overdrafts and Frnancial guarantee contracts.

Suhequenl mearilrcruefll

Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of Frnancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
belour

Loaw and borrowingt

After rnitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borou,ings are subsequentlv measured at amortised cost using
rhe EiR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilitres are derecognised
as u'ell as through the EIR amortisat-ion process. Amortised cost is calculated b1'takrng into account anv discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integtal part of the EIR. The EIR amortisarion is included as
Frnance costs in the statement of proFrt and loss.
I' i na n ctu/ .guru n lee io fi I rdL tr'

Financial guatantee contracts are those contracts that require a pa\-ment to be made to reimburse the holder for a

loss tt incurs because the specrFred parfi' farls to make a pavment rvhen due ro accordance \rv1th the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financral liabilin at the time the guarantee is issued at
thir value, adiusted flor transaction costs that are directlv attributable to the issuance oF the guaranree. Subsequentlr'.
the habilin' is measured at the higher oi the amounr of espected loss allos,ance determined as per impairmenr
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulatire amortization.

D e- rciogn i tio n 0l'.li ntt tt'id I lidl)i litie.t

-\ Frnancial liabilin' rs de-recognised rvhen the obligauon under the liabdrq' rs drscharged or cancelled or expires.
\\hen an exisring Ftnancial liabilin'is replaced bl another from the same lender on substanriallr- different rerrns, or
the terms of an esisting liabiLin' are substantiallr modrfied. such an exchange or modification is treated as rhe de-
recognition oi the onginal liabilin' and the recognition of a ner'"' liabilin'. The difference in the respecrire carn-ing
amounts rs recognised in the statement of prot-rt or loss.

3) R.eclassification of financial instruments

'l he Compau' determines classificarion of t'inancial
recognition, no reclassification is made tbr hnancial ass

assets and habiliues on rnidal recognitron. -\tter rniual
ets rx'hich are equin instruments and Frnancial l-iabihties. For

Ftnancial assets r,,'hich are debt instruments, a reclassification is made onlr if there is a change in tl-re business model
for managing drose assets. Changes to rhe business model are expected to be infrequent. The Companr''s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of exrernal or internal changes u'hich are signiFrcant
trl rhe Companl''s ()perations. Such changes are er-ident tc.r esrernal parries. -\ change in rhe business model occurs
t'hen the Companr-either begins or ceases to n' that ls slgnltlcant to irs r>peratious. IIthe (-ompanr
reclassif'ies lrnancial assers, ir applies rhe tiveh' flrom the reclassitication date rvhich is the fust
dar ,,I rlrc irnrnecLareh' nerr repr)rtrng period in business model. T'he. (.ompant cloes n()t resrate
ant prer-ror,rsh recognisecl gains, losses or losses) or interest.
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4) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and hnancial liabiliues are offset and the net amounr is reponed in the balance sheer if there is a
currendt' enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sertle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and setde the habiliues simultaneouslv.

l) Fait value measurement
The Companv measures financial instruments such as derivative instnrments etc at fak value at each balance sheet
date. Far value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to rransfer a liabiliry in an ordedy transaction
betrveen market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asser or a liabilitv is measured using the
assumptions that market participants rvould use when pricing the asset or liabiLirl, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-Frnancial asset takes into account a market
participant's abilin' to generate economrc beneFrts br. using the asser in its lughest and best use or bl selling it ro
another market parucipant that rvould use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Compao), uses raluation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for rvhich sufFrcienr data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of reler-ant obsen'able rnputs and minimising the use of
unobsen able inputs.

All assets and liabilitrcs for w'hich fair r.alue is measured or disclosed in the Enancial statements are categodsed u'ithin
the fait value hierarchv, described as follows, based on the lou,est level input that is signiFrcant to the fair value
measurement as a rvhole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadiusted) marker prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Ler-el 2 - \raluation techniques for which the lorr,'est level input thar is signiFrcant to the fair value
measurement is directlv or indirecdv obsen'able

. Level 3 - \'aluation rechniques For rvhich the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobsen'able

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone Frnancial statements on a recurring basis, rhe Companr,
determrnes rvhether transt:ers have occurred behveen levels in the hierarchv bv re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lo'nvest ler.el input that is significant to the fair r.alue measurement as a s,'hole) at rhe end of each reporting penod.

Esternal valuers are involred fcrr r-aluation of signihcant assets, such as properties and unquoted hnancial assets, and
signit-rcant liabilities, such as contingent considerarion. Invoivement of extemal r.aluers is decided upon annuallr. br-
the management. Valuers are selected based on market knos'ledge, reputation, independence and u'hether
professional standards are maintained.

For the pulPose of fair value disclosures, the Companv has determined classes of assets and liabilities on rhe basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or Iiabilin and the lerel ol the iair r-alue hierarchr as explained abore.

This note summatises accounting poLio' tbr fair ralue. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the reler-ant
notes.

o Disclosures for valuation methods, signiFrcant estimates and assumptions (note 4 and 36).

o Quantitatire disclosures of fair value measuremenr hierarchr- (note 36).

o Invesrmenr in unquoted equin- shares (note 68).

o Inresrmenr properries (nore -l).

r Financialinstrumenrs (includinu

m) Earnings per share

at
CIIARIE RE

sed cosr) inote 36 and 37)
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarrch2025
Basic earnings per share is calculated br dividing the net proFrt or loss for the period attributable to equin.
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) bv the weighted average number of equitl' shares outsranding during
the period. The rveighted-average number of equiq' shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for evenrs such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equiB' shares outstanding, s,'ithout a corresponding change il resources.

For the pulPose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss For rhe period atu'ibutable to equin-
shareholders and the rveighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adiusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equifi' shares.

n) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Companv applied flor the Ftst-time certain standards and amendments, rvhich are effective for annual periods
begrnmng on or atier I April 202-1, but do not hare a material Lmpact on the standalone financial statements oi the
Companr,.

lnd AS I l6: Leases - The NIC,\ noutled the Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
2()24, u'hich amended Ind -LS 1 16, Leases, with respect to Lease Liabilin' in a Sale and l-easeback, f'he amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabilin' ansing in a sale and leaseback
transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise an)- amount of the garn or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual reporung penods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must
be applied retrospectivell to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of rnitial applicauon of Ind
AS 116.

'lhese amendments had no matedal impact on the standalone financiai statements of the Company during the year.
Ind AS I I 7 : lnsurance - The lrfinistq' of Corporate -\ffairs OICA) notified the Ind AS 1 17, Insurance Contracts, vide
notiEcation dated t2 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024,
which is effective from annual reporting periods begrnning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind .\S 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensir-e ne\r'accountrng standard for insurance contracts cor-ering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind,\S 117 replaces Ind ^\S 10-l Insurance Contracts.
Ind -\S 117 apphes to all n'pes oiinsurance contracts, regardless o[the npe of enriues thatissue them as s'ell as to
certain guarantees and Frnancial instruments urth discretionan' paruciparion fearures; a ferv scope exceptions u-rll

applr. Ind .\S 117 is based on a general model. supplemenred br':

' .\ specific adaptation for contracts t'ith direct participation tearures (the variable fee approach); and

' ^\ srmphtled approach (the premium allocation approach) mainll tbr short-durarion contracts.

'fhese amendments had no material impact on the standalone hnancial sratemenrs of the Companv during the vear.

New and amended standards, not yet effective

fhere are no standards that are notrFred and not r-et ettecuve as on the date.

o) Significant management iudgement in applving accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Companv's standalone Frnancial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of rer.enues, expensest assets and liabilities, and the
related disclosures and the disclosure of contingent [abilities. Uncerrainn about rhese assumptions and estimates
could resulr in ()utcomes that require a marerial adjus tment to the
luture perinds o&c
Significant management judgements

*
CHARTERE

*

carn-ing amount ot- assets or liabrliues affected in
4
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The following are signihcant management judgements in applving the accounting policies of the Compan!- rhat have
the most signiFrcant effect on the standalone Frnancial sratemenrs.

Reeugnition of defemd tax aseb -Tlte extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessmenr
of the probabilin' of the future taxable income against rvhich the deferred tax assets can be utilized,

Euahation o/ indisutors Jbr inpair'rnent o.f' aueft - The evaluation of applicabrlifi- of indrcators oi impairment of assers
requires assessment of several external and internal factors s'hich could result in deterioration of recoverable amount
o[ the assets.

ClassiJication oJ' leatu - The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing affangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certaint! of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specializsd nature of the leased asset.

Determining tbe leue term oJ'nntractt with renewal and termination optiow (Company as lessee)- The Company determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with anv periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonablv certain to be exercised, or an1' penods corered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not
to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances rhat is within its control and affects its abiliry
to exercise or not to exetcise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of signiFrcant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Impaime.nt oJJinanda/ arelr - At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life,
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Proisiom - .\t each balance sheet date basis the managemenr iudgment. changes in facts and legal aspects, rhe
Compant'assesses the requirement oIprorisions against the outstanding contingenr liabrlities. Hovu'ever, the acrual
tuture outcome mav be difterent trom rhis judgemenr.

Ret,enue.t'mm 110 nlrLkt wilh ;uilomen -

The Companv has applied iudgements that sigmficanth' affecr the determinadon of rhe amounr and
timing of revenue from contracts *.rth customers.

Significant estimates
f'he ker- assumPtions concerning the future and other kei' sources o[ estimation uncertainfi' at the reporting date,
that have a signiticant nsk of causing a material adjustment to rhe carn'ing amorrnrs oF assers and ltabilides. are
described belot'. The Companv based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available s'hen t[-re standalone
[irrancial statcntettts \\'ere preparcd. I.srsting circurnstances and assurnpticrns about tutr,rre der-clc,pn-rcnts. I-irlg'erer.
mat' chirnge due t<, market changes or circumstances arising that are berond the control oI the (.orrrpanr'. Such
changes are reflected in the assumpdons rvhen ther occur.

\el rcalivtbk ulae o-l'inuenlory' -11-re detennination of net realisable value o[ in\:enton- invoh-es estimates based on
prevuling market conditions. ctlrrent prices and especre<l date of commencemenr and complerion oI rhe project, the
estimated [uture selling price, cost to complete projects and sell,ing cost. 'fhe Companr als6 inv6lr-es specialist rcr

per[rlmr valuations of inventories. t.herever required.

L'tet'ul liaet oJ dEreciabk/ amortivbh
depreciab[e/amorrrsable assers at each

-iet-s its estrnrare of rhe Lrsctirl lii'cs oI
expecred Lrtilin' of the assers. ['ncerririnties in

rhesc estirnates relate to technical ;rud

axett
&

t-nrl change thc rrtrlin oI asse ts
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3|March2025

L1aluation of inuestment prupery - Investment propertv is stated at cosr. However, as per Ind AS 40 'Investment
Propertr" there is a requirement to disclose fairvalue as at the balance sheet date. The Compan\: engaged independenr
valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its investment propert,' as at reporting date. The determination of
the fair value of investment properties requires the use oF estimates such as furure cash florvs from the assets (such
as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of Fr-xrures and firtings, any environmental matters and the overall
repair and condition of the Properh') and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks
(such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the

properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.

Inpairment of Pmpertl pknt equipnent, lnuestnent pmpeftiet and CWIP - Impairment exists rvhen the carq,ing value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the highet of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used.

DeJined funeiit obiigarion (DB{)1- Nlanagement's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlr,ing assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortalih', discount rate and anticipation of furure salan' increases. \tariation in
these assumptions mav signi[rcantlv rmpact the DBO amount and the annual defined benet-rt expenses.

Fair ta/ue mea.raftmenl disclowrct - Nlanagement applies r.aluation techniques (including but not hmited to the use of
illiquidin discount on investments) to determine the t-ar value of hnancial instruments (where active market quotes
are not available). This involves der.eloping estimates and assumptions consistent with horv market participants
would price the instrument.

l'aluation o.l'inrcttmenl in whidiurietjoinl aenturu and aro'ialet- Investrnents in subsidiaries, ioint ventures and
associates are carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of impairment of
such investments. This requires assessment of several extemal and intemal factor including capitalisation rare, kev
assumption used in discounted cash flow models (such as rel'enue growth, unit price and discount rates) or sales
comparison method rvhich mav affect the carn'ing mvestments tn subsidiaries, ioint venrures and
assoqates.

(th* gate le.ft b/ank)

CHARIERED
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Particulars As at
March 31,2025

0.90

(Amount in lakhs )

As at
Matcb3l,2024

0.90

3 Other financial assets (Non-cuffenr)
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposit

4 Other non-current assets

Capital ,\dvances

-for land

Less:- Provision for impairment

-for del.elopment

Less:- Provision for impairment

5 Cash andcash equivalent

Balances with scheduled Banks

-ln current accounts

0.90 0.90

173.19

(1 73.1 e)

263.61

(263.61)

173.19

(173.1e)

263.61

(263.61)

0.97 3.54

0.97 3.54

RIERED

(This Eaa hf blank)

*
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6 Equity
Equiqr share capital
(A) Authorised, issued subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value pe( share

Particulats

Equity shares

At the beginning of the year

.{.dd : Change during the year

At the end ofthe year

and restrictions attached to shares

(D) Shares held the at the end of the year

(E) Shareholding details of the company

(F) Details of shareholders holding more than 570 shares (Equity)

Particulars

Authorised Capital
50,000 (prelious lear - 50,000) llquin Sharcs of t 10/- each

Issued eubscribed and paid-up share capital
50,000 (previous 1'ear - 50,000) Equih Shares of{ 10/- each fully, paid up

(B) Reconciliation of numbers of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at
Match3l,2025

(Amount in lakhs )
As at

lil'{arch31,2024

5.005.00

5.00 5.00

5.00 s.00

5.00 5.00

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March31,2024

No. of shares No. of shares

50,000.00 s0,000.00

50,000.00 50,000.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including restrictions on fistributions of dividends and repaymeot of
attached to the class of shares ".OUr)l Type ofshares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of t 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is

entilded to ooe vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be eotitled to
receive remaining assets of the Company after setting off all liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares hetd by the shareholders.

Equiw

Name of the shareholder Class of shares

No ol
shares
held in
Lggtege

te by
holdins

Percentage ofshares
held

Percentage change
during the yeat

DLIi Llome f)cvckrpcrs l,imited Q)arent companv) along with its

Nominees
Ilquit' 50,000 100%

Name of the shareholder Class of shares
Aggregate no. of shares

held in the company

DL[. I lome Developers l-imited (Parent companv) along with irs Nominees Iiquin 50,000

Name of the shareholder ( CHARTE
\
o1

No, of shares held in the
comPany

Percentage of shares held

l\iTaDl,F I [ome Developers Limited (Parent companr) along with its N&nir I 50,000 100%



Particulars

7 Other equity

Retained eaming
Statement of profit and loss

.\s per last balance sheet

l,oss f<tr thc rear

.\dd: ( )ther comprehcnsive income

Nct dcficit in the staement of profit and loss (.\)

Equity component of compulsorily convertible debentures
As per last balance sheet

Deletion during thc vcar

(ts)

Total other equio

As at
3lMatch2025

As at
31March2024

(1,1 59.76)

(3 0t1

(1,r s6.08)

(3.68)

(1,163.13) (1 , l 59.76)

I ,t -16.00 1,146.00

1,146.00 1,146.00

(A)+@)

(This Ean has bnn intentiomlfi leJt bla*)

(11.73) (13.76)

&

CHARIERE
\
o\

I

*
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Particulars As at
Match3l,2025

8. Borroruings

Unsccured Loan tiom rclated parn

- fiom l)l,f; l{omc I)o'clopcrs f.imitcd '
n.00

*Reparzble on demand aod carries interest @ 8.75% (Nlarch 31,2024:8.7570) per annum as at balance sheet date

9. Trade payable

--l'()tal ()utstanding dues of micro cnterprises and smnll enterprises $iote No. 18)

- l'otal outstanding ducs ofcrcditors other than micrc entcrprises and small cnterprises

1.48

Trade payable ageing schedule

Balance a6 at March 2025

Balance as at March 2024

# similar information is given where no due date of pavment is specified in that case disclosure is from the date of the transaction.

12.00

(Amount in lakhs )

As at
March31,2024

11.00

1r.00

1.24

n)t
1.24

1.24

in lakhs

in lakhs

10, Other financial liablities
Intcrest accrued on Borrowings

Interest accrued on Dcbenrures

11. Other curtent Iiablities
Statuton dues payablc

0.87

0.10

0.11

0.10

0.97 0.81

0.15 0.1 5

0.15 0.ls

Co

t
(

*

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars [,ess
than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3yeas More than 3 years Total

0 NISI\IE- Not Due 1.24 1.21

(ii)NISNIE- Due

(iii) Others 0.2.+ 0.24

(iv) Disputed dues-l\{SN{E

(v) l)isputed dues-()thers

from due date offor

Particulars [,ess

than I
yeet

1-2 years 2-3yearc More than 3 years Total

0 NISN{E- Not Due 1.24 1,.24

(ii)IISltIL.- Due

(iii) ()thers

(iv) Disputed dues-lvISI\IE

(v) Disputed dues-()thers

(Tltis Ear

&

i n te n tio uall1 leJi hla n k)
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Particulars For the year ended
iil'{'arch31,2025

0.03

0.03

(Amount in lakhs )

For the year ended
Match3l,2024

n.n.)

12. Othet Income
Interest on
tsank deposits

13, Finance coet

Interest on Borrowings from related parties

Interest on CCDs

14. Other expenses

Rcnt

.\dvertisement & Publiciw

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Payment to auditor
-.\udit fee

-Reimbursement of expenses

-GS'l'

0.02

0.96

0.11

0.78

0.11

1.07 0.89

0.94

0.02

0.61

1.15

0.58

0.82

0.03

1.15

0.02

0.210.21

2.93 2.81

CHART E R E

(Thtu Eace has bun iuhntionalll'hft blatk)
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in lakhs

15. Tax expense

(a) 'I'he maior comPonents ()f income tas cxpense and the reconciliarion of expense based on the domestic elfective rat rate of at 25.1 (r8o o and the reported ta\
expense in profit or loss re as follos s:

(b) Rrconciliation of tar expense and the accounting pro6t multiplied by rax nte
Accounting pmfit before income tex
At country's stetutory income tax rate of 25.168q0 (March 31,2024 - 25.1680 o)

Tax efrect of emounts which are not deductible (uxebte) in calculeting axeble income:
Unrmognised deferred trx on unabsorbed losses

Net loss attribuable to equity shareholdem
Loss after tas

[.oss ettributable to equity shereholdem

Nominal ta.lue of equity shre ({)
Weighted average number ofequiry shares used for computarion ofbasic earning per shre

Eemings per equiw shere

l]roic
Nominal va.lue of equw shre (t)
\{'erghted avemge number of equitl shres used to compute diluted emings per shue
Diluted

(3.e7)
(l.oo)

1.00

(3.68)

(1.00)

1.00

rThe company has incuned losses in the cutrenr yeiu as well m brought fom.rd unabsorbed losses uoder u-x laws rvhich results in creation of Deferred tar
assets. Hos€ver, due to lack of sufEcient tlyable temporar!' differences md conv-incing er.idence regarding availability of suf6cient future taxable pro6t, the
Company has prudendy decided not to recognise any deferred ta-\ assets.

16. Eernirgs/(Loss) per equity shrre
Emings Per Shre (EPS) is detemined based on the net pro6t attributable to the shreholders' of the Holding Companv. Bmic earnings per shre is
computed using the weighted avenge number of shres outstanding dmng the year. Compulsorily convertible debentures are treated u equivalent of equity
shre for the PurPose of basic eamings Ptr trluity share. Diluted emings per shre is computed using the w.eighted average numbu of common and dilutive
common equivalent shrcs outstanding during the yer including shrc options, ercept *'here the result w'ould be anti-dilutive.

(3.e0 (3.68)

(3.97\ (3.68)

l0
1,15,10,000

(0.03)

I0
1,1 5,1 0,0(x)

(0.03)

l0
1,1 5,1 0,000

(0.03)

l()

l. l5,l0,lxx)
(0.03)

The Following is a reconcillation of the equity shues used in the computation of basic and diluted ernings per equitv shares

Basic eerniags per equity sh.nc - weighted .verrgc nunbcr ofcquity sheres outsteoding
Total number of equitv shrcs outstanding at the beginning of the yeu
0.010 o Compulsorily Conreruble Debenture
Weighted ar.erage number r:f equitl shues oumtanding used ro compute bmic FIPS

Diluted eamings per cquitv sh.re - weighted everzge number ofequitv sheres outsteading
rueighted average number ofequity shres for basic EPS

Weighted average number of equiw shares outstanding used to compute

50,000

I,l 4,(10,000

50,000

l, I {,(n),0(x)

I,15,10,000

1.1 5,10,()00

I,15,10,000

I,15,1(),000

t HARIER E D

(lhit

EPS

hlr hh*1

I,15,10,000 1,15,10,000

Peaiculer For rt'. ycer caded For thc yeer cadcd
Mrrch 3t 2lllllt Mzrtchlt"Xlz4

Penicuhrg For 6c ycer codcd
M.rct 31, ZIZi

For ttc ycer codcd
M*rchll,2EL4

P.rticuhrg For ttc yeer codcd
M.rch 3t, Zf25

Forthe ycaterffi
MercL 2024
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17. Ratio Analysis for the year ended otr llarch 31,2025

Current -\ssct 0.97
1) Current Ratio

(.urrent Liabilities 14.60
0.07 0.21 -15.23% Increase in current liabilities

Debt 12.00
2) Debt-Equiw Ratio

['-t1uin' (12.73)
(0.e4) (1.26) (0.2s)

Due to Increase in
Borrowing

Debt
Ratio

Due to Increase in
Borrowing

3. l9 5.66
91

Income
3) -43.

Service Coverage Net

Debt Service

Net Income (3.e7)
4)

Rerum on Equity
Ratio

Shareholders Equiq' (12.73)

0.3'l 0.42 -25.70o/o
Due to increase in l,osses in
Retained Eamings

COGS
s)

Inventorr fi.rnover
rat1() Average Inventory

NA N:\ N.\

N,1 N.\ NA

NA
turnover raflo

N_-\ N,\

Net profit ratio N.\ NA

6)

pavables
NA7) NA

8) NA

e) NA

receivables

ratlo
Net Sales

Net Purchase

Receivables

.{ssets

or C()GS

Net Profit
Sales

Net capital tumover
ratio

Net Pro6t (2.e0)

10)
Retum on Capital

emploved Capital Emploved (12.73)
0.23 0.32 -28.400h

Due to increase in [,osses in
Retained Eamings

Net retum on iovestment
I l) Return on investment

Cost of Investment
NA NA N,\

l) Current Ratio
Current Assets =lnventory + Cash & Cash Equivalenl5 g Cu6gn1 I iabilities= Trade Payables +

Other Financial Liabilities * Curent Borrowings + Other Current Liabilities

,\ Debt/Equiw Ratio
Total Debt =Borrowing +lnterest on Borrowing & Total Equiry =Equir,' Share Capital + Other

Equitv

3) Debt Senice Coverage Ratio
Eamings before exceptional items, Interest and Tax - [Finaoce Cost + Principal repavments made

during the period for non-currerit boffowinp @cluding current marurities)l

4) Retum on equitv ratio Net llarningp + Shareholders' Equity (I-oss after tax /E<1uiw Share Capital + ()ther Equiq)

5) Invcnt<ln ntrnover Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others + Averal;e lnveotories

6)
-l'radc 

receivable tumover rado Revenue fr<lm ()peratiofls + .\vcrage T'rade Rcceivablcs

7) Trade pat'able tumover ratio
Cost of land, plots, development rights, constructed properties and others + .\verage rccounrs

pavable

8) Net capital tumnver rado 'ltrtal Sales + Total Equiq'
e) Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax + Revenue from operations
l0) Return on capital emploved t.lBI'l'= 'ltxal Equitv (I-oss after tax /E l"ir, Share Capital + Other Equiq)
l1) Retum r)n Lrvestment 4-;\- Net retum on Iovestment + Cost of Investment

CHARIERED

S.No P.dcut rr Formule
at Ar etMelch3LflII4 Yeriedoo

6619 thra
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S.No Retioc Formuh
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31,2025

l8 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterpri*s as per MSMED Act,2fil6 to the extent of infomation availablc with the Company:

t9

The abore infomation regarding Micro, Small md Medim Enterprises hm been detemined to the e\tenr such panies have bm idmtified on the bais of infomation available with

sme has been relied upon by the auditors.

Financial Instruments

i) Fair mluee hierarchy

of significmt input to the mesurement as follows:

kvel l: Quoted price (madiusted) in actirc mrket for the hnucial instrument
kvel 2: input other thm quoted pdces included q'ithin lerel 'l that re obsep'able for the assets or l.iabilities, either rlirectl-v or indirectly

kvel 3: Unobsen'able inputs for the assets or liabilities

iD Finmcial instruments mcsured at fair value-recurring fair r.alrc measurmmts- Nil

iiD Fair value of instruments measured at mortised cost:

in lakhs

iv) Financial Inotruments by catcgory
The carrying value and fair value of finmcial instrument by catcgories as follo*s:

in lakhs

20 Risk Management

The (i:mprny's acti\-ities expose it to milket risk, liquidin risk md credit risk.
(irmpm1,s risk mmagment framework. This note explains the sources of risk

'l'hc (-,xnPi,1\'s IIrrrrl rrfl)ireclrrs hirs,xerall rcsprrnsibilin tor the establishmcnt anrJ or.crsighr oIrhc

to anv supplier as at the end of each accomting ver
principal amount and the thereon rcmaining

t.21 1.24

Micto Small md Medium EnterptGe Developmmt Act,
rvith the mounts of the pavmmt made to the supplier

appointed dav during each accouting 1cr

16,Jmr)Unt paid br. the buver in tems

pa,ym€rt (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
the 1'cr) but v'ithout adding the interest specified mder

md Nledium Bnterpdse Developmmt Act,2006

amount of intcrest the period of delay in

mount of interest mpaid at the md
each accountitrg yeil

the succeeding yem, mtil such date vhm dre intetest dues a
ile actually paid to the soall mterprise for the purposc

m a deductible expmditue under section 23 of
Nlicro Small and Nledim Entelprise Developmmt.tct,2006

The amount of further pavable even

Financial Assets

Securirv dcposit kvel 3 0.90 0.90 0.90 0.90
Cash and cash equir.alents Irvel 3 0.97 0.97 3.54 3.5+
Total Financial Assets 1.87 1.87 4.44 1.41
Tmde payable krrl 3 l.4ti 1-48 1.24 '1.24

Borrou'ings (ncluding interest) l*vel 3 12.96 t1.96 't 1.78 I 1.78
Interest accrued on Debentures lrvel 3 0.10 0.r0 0.10 0.10
Total Financial Liabilitics 14.g 14.54 B.n 13.t2

Financial As*ts
Securin' dcposit Isel 3 0.90 0.9r)
(,ash and cash equivalents Igel 3 0.97 3.54
Total Financial Assets 1.87 4.44
T'rade parablc Inel 3 1..18 'I -24
l}rtrol-ings (Including inrercs$ Isrl 3 12.t6 I t.l8
lnterest accrued on Debentures krel 3 0.10 0.10
Total Financial Liabiliries 14.5,t B.l2

HAR TER E D

A)

statments.

Credit Risk

rvhich trr rnrl hot thc cnrin rnrurrgcs thc risk rnd thc relarcd imprct rn rhc tinancirtl

P.fticubn As.r A.s
3l March II25 3l Merch XIZ

P.rticularg LcrGl 3lMsch fl)25 tfrrA
CsrvinoYrhs FeirYdm CawirVrh* Frir Velue

Perticohs LcaEl
FTTPL FYOCI Anortied CGt FYTPL FVOCI Arnortied Cmr
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Notes to Financial Stalcments for the year cnded March 31,2025

B) Liquidir-y Ri6k

liqudin rrI rhc rrarkct ur l'lrrch thc oltiN (,Pcratcs.

2t

17

Maturities of {inancial Iiabilities
'Ihc rablts ltdt,t'arralrsc thc (-<xnplrurr fitrercret ltaltrlncs ttl r rdcr'rttt rnrturrrv gnrrPrrgs brsctl ott tht u cr rttrrr-ltrrl rllrtuut t '

in lakhs

t2025 n I year I l-5 Yeats

-t?rd

I t2.96

lntcrcst accruc<i (nl l)cbcotulls 0 I)l I 0.1

Tmdc payablc l.l8l I
1.18

lI rrrrnvirrts /lrrcludittg nttctcrt) ll -)tl

I rttrrcst rl'rucrl rr llrl
'I rtlr Irrrrblc L lrl I

r.24

C) Market Risk

a) Interest Rate Risk

i) Uabilities

thc fururc cash florvs rvill tlucruarc bccnusc of a change in frarkct i'rrctcsl mtcs'

ii) Assets

sill tlncMrt'br'crrst' o[ a charrgc trl trlnrk('r trrtcrcsl mlc''

Related Party Disclosrrres

lrrtirrmatirt rcquirtxi nr bc tltsctoscrl untlcr INI).'\.S 2J orr "l{clarerl l'arry l)tclosuref'

a) Relationships

D Ultimate Parent Compuy
Rai(lhatri l[l'csmrcnl & \geilcics l)ril'atc Ltrnitcd

ri) Intermediatc parent ComPanY

l)l.l t.inritctl fl)arrnl crruParr o[l)t.l' I kmc l)ctcktcri l'rnitcrl''

iu) Parent Company
l)l,l l l,rrnr l)erch,|crs l.rntrrtl

b) A) [)ctrils oftrrnsactir)ns sith the rclated pdrl\'/p{rrics tlrrring tlrc lcar/prcriorrs \crr ill thc ordinarv c()llrst ofllusintss'

Transactions undertaken duing the
vear

limrvirrrs talcrt
I trtcte.t trIrtrrc ort b, fir,lrrlrgs h.9( 0.7tr

lrrn.rt,st,,rr l)cbcrrttrrt s il.ll {l.ll

llcrt I rrpcrr.t lr ,.1 o.ll

l)) []rlancc it (ht tlr(l of the y..car

Balance at thc end ofyear

ll,rrrr,rvrtt.

l)arelrt colnprnv
ffi

-

lu(.rcit lccrur'ri Ilrt rr,rt rlrrr,rtt Ir,tr,,l'tttgs
I il-l

iltcrcst accnr((l rnr l)rbcrlturc. il llrl lr llr

.c,lt Dxribl(' o ttl
(;nt)rtil 5.ln)l 5.(,(l

',rn,r,rh,rilr ( rrrrrr.rriblr l)rbcrrrutcs tLrr, ,lrl l.l+6.0{)

ln

21 lhc(irtn|rrrt lrr: rrscrl r thttri prrtr,4lcrrtcrl iccrrlrllnlt srlll\\lrc l')r

tlrrrrrghrrt tlrr rcrr tin-rlt rclcvxrtt lnrlrict(nli rtcorrlcLl rrl tllr ',,llr,rr, rrl,l

(.r,rDl)xrr(r \(1. ll)l l. rrr r(il)(ct ot th tinrrrcrrl rcrr cnritrl \lrrcll \1.

Srrrrcr'()r.rrrrr.rtrrt( r,iltrol{r(l)r,rr15()(:l rrlx frcP,n t,,,1,'tornrtt,'

of acc,Irrr rrrri rhxt tl]( xrdrl trrrl firtrrrr ,,t tlr' :il(l roltlvrrc was corblcri rncl rllemnr!

thr;rrrrlrt tmrl rtrlrrll i,,rrll)ll:lrrr,rrr|'l'r rr'l rlrlrll(lll'iltr(ct()lllf8/r oitl)c

Il)r.lirrrllaril \crrs etlrlr(l \{rrclr il. llrll. \l,rrrr$crrrurrt l: ll()l l'l l)r'rscisioil ()[

l(rrlr lr.r. lrtlrr rrrr t

HARTE R E

Ptenr company

ffi
l.l )l ll I tx)

Totall-5 YearsI -ess than
I l.
0.(



I-amingl; Nil \il
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iapital commitment and conringent liabilin as on 3l NIrch 2025 is Nil @revious par- Nil).

Foreign Exchange emings md ourgo

n()t to fcc(rgf,ise asset ()n curr€nt reticrv pcriod anrl carn tonr.ard business losscs.

(irmpanr is primarilv operating in India rvhich is considcred rs a singlc gcographical segrnenr.

stated in the Balancc Sheet and pr()r'isions firr all knc,l.n liabilities have been made.

recognition exemption protided in Pua 6 oI INt) .\S 116 "kascs".

Other statutory infomation for the year ended March 3! 2025 andMatch3l"2024
(i) The Compmy does not harc mv benmi propert)', where my proceeding has bem initiated or pending against the Compmy for holding any benmi propeny under the Benami
Trmsactions @rohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) md rules made thereunder.
(i) The Compmy do not hart my Emsactions with compmies struck off mder Section 2€ of the Compmies Act, 2013.

(ui) The Companv do not have m, charges or setisfaction which is )rt to be registered with Registru ofCompanies beyond the statutos pedod.

(iv) The Compmy harc not traded or invested in Crypto Cwency or Vinual Curenq. duing the fmmcial vear.

(r) The Compmy has not advmced or lomed or inrcsted funds to my other ptrson(s) or muty(es), including foreign mtities (ntemediries) with the understmding that the
Intemediary shall:

(a) direcdy or indirecdy lend or inrtst in otherpesons or entities idmtified in my mmner rvhatsoercr by or on behalf of the Compmy (Ultimate Bmeficiroies); or

ft) provide my gwmtee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Llltimate Beneficiuies.

(vi) The Compmy hc not received mv fund from my person(s) or mtityfies), including foreign eotities @unding Party) with the undestmding (whether recorded in u.riting or
othemisc) that the Compmy shall;

(a) direcdl' or indirecdy lmd or inrcst in other persons or mtiries identified in my manner rvhatsoercr b1' or on behalf of the Funding parn (Ulumate Bene ficiaies); or
(b) provide mt guamtee, secutiry.or the lihe on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiries.

(vii) The Compmy does not hare my such trmsaction u'hich is not recorded in the books of account that has been smendered or disclosed as income io the tar assessmeots mrler the
Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, serch or surcy or m)'other) relevmt provisions of the lncome-trx Act, 1961.

(viii) The Compmy has not bem declared wilful defaulter by mv bmk or frnmcial institution or Govemment or my Goremment authodty or other lender, in accordmce u.ith the
guidelnes on wilful defaulters issued by the Resm,e Bank of India

(x) The Compmv has complied with the number of layes prescribed under Clause (87) of Section 2 of the Compmies Act, 2013 read w.ith the Compmies (X,estriction on nmber of
I-a1''ers) Rules, 20'l7 fnrm the date of their implemmtation.

Figures ofprevious yeas harr been regrouped/reclassifred s'here eler considered necessarl to make thm comprable sith that ofcurrent year.

For md on behalf of Eoard o[ Directors

Amishi Builders & Pvt Lrd
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Place: Gurugram
Date:22,04.25

w {rC
Pankai Rastogi

Director
DIN : (lt|921304

Kumar
f)ircctor

07319564
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